IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

THOMAS D. HALL MAR 2 6 2001 CLERK, SUPREME COURT

FILED

Od5

BY____

THOMAS SOLOMOS AND LUCAS PITTERS, ON BEHALF OF THEMSELVES AND ALL OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED,

Petitioners,

CASE NO. SC01-510

vs.

SHERIFF KEN JENNE,

Respondent.

PETITIONERS' AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FOURTH DISTRICT STATE OF FLORIDA

STEVEN WISOTSKY, P.A. 3050 JEFFERSON STREET MIAMI, FL 33133 TEL: (305) 858-2436 Fla. Bar No. 130838 GARY KOLLIN, P.A. 8211 W. BROWARD BLVD. FT. LAUDERDALE, FL 33324 TEL: (954) 723-9999 Fla. Bar No. 282431

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A. Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below

Thomas Solomos and Lucas Pitters filed a class action complaint for declaratory and injunctive relief. R:1. They moved for class certification, which the circuit court granted. R:85. Defendant appealed certification, and it was affirmed. *Jenne v. Solomos*, 707 So. 2d 1203 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998).

The circuit court granted Defendant's motion for summary judgment and denied Plaintiffs' cross motion for partial summary judgment (on liability). The court entered Final Judgment for the Sheriff. Plaintiffs appealed to the Fourth District Court of Appeal, and the district court affirmed the order of the trial court in a written opinion [attached]. *Solomos v. Jenne*, 2000 WL 1854006 (Fla. 4th DCA 2000). Motion for clarification was denied February 1, 2001. Petitioners' notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this court was timely filed.

B. Statement of the Facts

Pursuant to Broward County Jail Standard Operating Procedure (hereinafter "SOP") 1.2.12, R: 179, 211, Plaintiffs were assessed fees for uniforms¹ at the rate of \$10.00 flat fee per inmate and subsistence fees at the rate of \$2.00 per inmate per diem. This SOP was implemented pursuant to the ostensible authority of Fla.

 $^{^1\,}$ While the SOP attributes the one-time \$10.00 charge to uniforms, the Inmate Handbook attributes that charge to "processing." R: 262 at 3.

Stat. § 951.033. The collection of statutory fees by the Sheriff from jail inmates commenced on or about August, 1996. Total fees collected from inception through November 30, 1999 were \$1,726,031.00.

Section 951.033 (2) requires that the Sheriff determine the financial "status" of inmate in order to determine the ability of each inmate to pay. Sheriff Jenne determines that an inmate is able to pay if that inmate has any money at all--"a positive balance"--in the inmate's account.

While the Sheriff has a procedure to screen out Social Security checks and to pay out court-ordered restitution, the Sheriff has no procedure to determine if other exemptions mandated by § 951.033(2) apply: he does not consider an inmate's potential liability to the victim or guardian or the estate of the victim, or to his or her dependents. R:166, p. 28

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the district court of appeal below because: (1) It expressly declares valid a state statute, Art. V § 3(B)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i); (2) It expressly construes a provision of the state or federal constitution, Art. V § 3(B)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii); and (3) It expressly affects a class of constitutional or state officers, Art. V § 3(B)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iii).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I. In this case, the district court of appeal expressly declared valid Fla. Stat. § 951.033 and in so doing expressly construed the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. It held that due process does not require a pre-taking opportunity to be heard and that the obscure general grievance procedure provided a sufficient post-taking opportunity to object to what the inmates handbook describes as an "automatic" assessment. That decision was contrary to procedural due process principles established in *Fuentes v. Shevin,* 407 U.S. 67 (1972).

The district court also rejected the argument that § 951.033 was unduly vague because it lacked standards for fundamental terms such as the Sheriff's duty to determine an inmate's "ability to pay." Such unfettered discretion unlawfully delegates to the sheriffs of this state the power to declare what the law shall be, and such a power is unconstitutional. Askew v. Cross Keys Waterways, 372 So.2d 913 (Fla. 1978); Lewis v. State Board of Health, 143 So.2d 867 (Fla. 1st DCA 1962).

II. The jurisdiction conferred upon this court is discretionary. This court should exercise it. The statute at issue in this case affects every one of the approximately 50,000 current convicted inmates, all future convicted inmates, and every current or future pretrial detainee who spends a night in jail. The issues presented herein involve millions of dollars in fees charged and chargeable under § 951.033. Finally, the issues presented herein

will almost certainly generate more litigation in the four sister appellate districts as well as in the federal districts until it is definitively resolved by this court.

ARGUMENT

I. THE OPINION OF THE COURT OF APPEAL CONFERS JURISDICTION ON THIS COURT BECAUSE IT EXPRESSLY DECLARES VALID FLA. STAT. § 951.033, EXPRESSLY CONSTRUES THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT, AND EXPRESSLY AFFECTS THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF SHERIFFS.

Procedural due process under the Fourteenth Amendment

The court of appeal expressly construed Fla. Stat. § 951.033 to be valid under principles of procedural due process of law under the Fourteenth Amendment. The court concluded that "the Sheriff's procedure complies with the due process requirements set forth in *Fuentes* as modified by *Mitchell* [v. W.T. Grant Co., 416 U.S. 600, 611 (1974)]." Solomos v. Jenne, 2000 WL 1854006 *3 (Fla. 4th DCA 2000).

This conclusion was incorrect. *Mitchell* approved the postponement of an opportunity for hearing where both the buyer and the seller with a vendor's lien advanced competing interests in the same property. The Court upheld Louisiana law that sought to strike a balance between buyer and seller in such circumstances. By contrast, the Sheriff had no pre-existing property right in the inmates' money when he debited their accounts.

The court erred in refusing to apply *Fuentes* v. Shevin, 407 U.S. 67 (1972). In that case, the Supreme Court overturned the

Florida replevin statute for failure to provide pretaking hearings. Even "temporary or partial impairments to property rights are sufficient to merit due process protection." Department of Law Enforcement v. Real Property, 588 So.2d 957, 964 (Fla. 1991); Connecticut v. Doehr, 501 U.S. 1, 3 (1991). The court of appeal did not heed these principles.

Fuentes suggested an exception to the requirement of a predeprivation hearing in "extraordinary situations where some valid governmental interest is at stake that justifies postponing the hearing until after the event." 407 U.S. at 82; Boddie v. Connecticut, 401 U.S. 371, 378-79 (1971). The district court invoked this exception by holding

> that charging subsistence fees to alleviate the financial burden of incarcerating prisoners is an important governmental interest [and] the need for prompt action by the sheriff in seizing the available funds is apparent here . . .

Solomos v. Jenne, 2000 WL 1854006 *3 (Fla. 4th DCA 2000). However, jail fee assessments are routine daily matters, not "extraordinary situations where some valid governmental interest is at stake that justifies postponing the hearing until after the event." Boddie v. Connecticut, 401 U.S. at 378-79.

The court of appeal thus erred in applying federal procedural due process principles established by the U.S. Supreme

Court.² It also conflicted with the decision of this court, which held that due process requires "that deprivation of life liberty or property be *preceded* by a notice and opportunity for hearing." *County of Pasco v. Riehl*, 635 So.2d 17, 18-19 (Fla. 1994).

The statute could and should be construed to be consistent with these basic principles of procedural due process because it provides for "reasonable advance notice of the assessment and . . . an opportunity to present reasons for opposition to the assessment." The word "advance" appears³ to modify the phrase "opportunity to present reasons for opposition to the assessment." On its face, therefore, the statute requires predeprivation hearings. This court should so rule.

To the extent that a post-taking hearing might arguably satisfy due process, the Sheriff's procedure does not. It essentially "hides the ball" from inmates, failing to give them

² The court of appeal also made new and bad law in holding that the property rights of the affected inmates are not "substantial" except "subjectively." *Id.* at *3. The court cited no authority for that assertion, and it flies in the face of the principle that possessions are protected property. Possession even of a stray dog is a constitutionally protected property right. *See* County of Pasco v. Riehl, 635 So.2d 17 (Fla. 1994). Many consumer class actions are brought to recover an aggregation of very small individual claims.

³ Any ambiguity in grammar should be resolved in favor of the construction that renders the statute constitutional. "We are conscious of our duty to interpret a legislative Act so as to effect a constitutional result if it is possible to do so." Cassady v. Consolidated Naval Stores, Co., 119 So. 2d 35, 37 (Fla. 1960).

meaningful notice of their right to be heard in "opposition to the assessments." The Sheriff's claimed post-deprivation opportunity to be heard is illusory because it is nothing more than the general grievance procedure.⁴ As presented in the inmate handbook, the general grievance procedure does not mention subsistence fees at all, and the notice printed in the handbook states that such fees will be "automatically deducted each day." R: 262 at 3. "To qualify under due process standards, the opportunity to be heard must be meaningful, full and fair, and not merely colorable or illusive." Rucker v. City of Ocala, 684 So.2d 836, 841 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996).

Vagueness and Unlawful Delegation

The court of appeal expressly construed the statute to be valid under principles of vagueness and state principles of unlawful delegation. § 951.033 requires the sheriff to "determine the financial status of prisoners," but provides no criteria for making that determination. The district court concluded that "section 951.033 is not overly vague, nor does it give the Sheriff unfettered discretion." *Solomos v. Jenne*, 2000 WL 1854006 *4 (Fla. 4th DCA 2000).

This conclusion is at odds with the well-established

⁴ Even if it were deemed non-illusory, the post-taking grievance procedure shifts the burden from having the Sheriff determine "ability to pay" to having the inmate show that he is exempt from paying. This burden-shifting is itself unconstitutional. See Armstrong v. Manzo, 380 U.S. 545 (1965).

principle that the legislature cannot delegate power such as this to sheriffs without clear standards under established principles of due process and vagueness. "The legislature may not delegate the power to enact a law, to declare what a law shall be, or to exercise an unrestricted discretion in applying the law." *Lewis* v. *State Board of Health*, 143 So.2d 867, 875 (Fla. 1st DCA 1962). Such a statute is unconstitutionally vague and will be stricken. *D'Alemberte v. Anderson*, 349 So.2d 164 (Fla. 1977). Likewise, such a statute suffers from the corresponding defect of unlawful delegation of legislative power to an executive branch official. *Askew v. Cross Keys Waterways*, 372 So.2d 913 (Fla. 1978).

Powers and Duties of Sheriffs

In expressly declaring valid § 951.033 and expressly construing the Due Process Clause, the opinion of the court of appeal necessarily affects the powers and duties of those sheriffs who are designated pursuant to § 951.061 to implement § 951.033, as was the Sheriff of Broward County.⁵

The construction of the statute upheld by the district court "substantially expands the responsibility of sheriffs . . . and, as such, affects a class of constitutional officers." Ramer v. State, 530 So. 2d 915, 915-16 (Fla. 1988). This case presents the court with the opportunity to clarify the powers and duties of the sheriffs under this statute on an important matter

⁵ Broward County, Fla., Code § 18-01(a).

involving millions of dollars in statutory fees.

II. THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION OVER THIS CASE BECAUSE THE PRE-HEARING TAKING OF INMATES' MONEY IS A MATTER OF CONTINUING STATEWIDE CONCERN TO THOUSANDS OF INMATES, AS WELL AS TO SHERIFFS, AND WILL LIKELY GENERATE FUTURE LITIGATION.

Florida had [as of 1998] an average daily population of 49,212 prisoners.⁶ "[T]he term 'prisoner,' as it is used in section 951.033, includes pre-trial detainees." *Williams v. Ergle*, 698 So. 2d 1294, at 1297 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). The size of the affected class grows over time with the ever increasing number of arrests, which in 1998 totaled 880,191 statewide.⁷

In state courts, the validity of § 951.033 has been addressed only within Fourth District. Given the size of the statewide class affected by the statute, the validity of § 951.033 is almost certain to invite further litigation in the other four districts. The potential for inter-district conflict is clear. For example, the Fifth District Court of Appeal acknowledged the potential merit of the due process claim made here but declined to decide it because the appellant had failed to raise the issue in the circuit court. *Williams v. Ergle*, 698 So. 2d 1294, 1297 n.3 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). Likewise, *McLeod v. Henderson*, 1999 WL 1427749 (M.D. Fla. Dec. 28, 1999), is not

⁶ Florida Department of Corrections, <u>County Detention</u> <u>Facilities Profile Summary: 1998 Annual Report</u>, tbl. 1 (1999).

⁷ Florida Department of Law Enforcement, <u>Crime in Florida</u>, <u>Florida Uniform Crime Report, 1998</u> (1999).

binding upon any other federal judge, and as to state court judges, it is "meaningless." Moore v. Sims, 442 U.S. 415, 427-28 (1979).

. .

CONCLUSION

This court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below on three overlapping grounds. This court should exercise that jurisdiction to consider the merits of the petitioners' argument. The constitutional validity of § 951.033 presents a set of important issues involving millions of dollars that are likely to recur. They should be resolved by this court in this case.