045

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

# FILED THOMAS D. HALL MAR 2 8 2001

BY\_\_\_\_

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

THOMAS SOLOMOS AND LUCAS PITTERS, ON BEHALF OF THEMSELVES AND ALL OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED,

Petitioners,

vs.		4 <sup>th</sup> DCA	CASE NO.	96-14552	(13)
SHERIFF K	EN JENNE,				
	Respondent.	/			
	RESPONDENT'S	JURISDICTIO	NAL BRIE	F	
(		IEW FROM THE FOURTH DIST OF FLORIDA		COURT	

BRUCE W. JOLLY, ESQUIRE
PURDY, JOLLY & GIUFFREDA, P.A.
Attorneys for Respondent
1322 S.E. Third Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316
Telephone (954) 462-3200
Telecopier (954) 462-3861
Fla. Bar No. 203637

#

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

## A. Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below:

Respondent for purposes of this proceeding concurs with Petitioners' recitation of the Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below as contained in Petitioners' Jurisdictional Brief.

## B. Statement of the Facts.

Respondent does not concur with Petitioners' recitation of the Statement of the Facts. Petitioners' Statement of the Facts fails to accurately describe the procedure implemented by the Respondent to recover incarceration costs pursuant to Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999) as developed before the trial court and as referenced in the Record on Appeal before the Court of Appeal.

Respondent provides actual notice to all inmates that they will be responsible for payment of daily subsistence costs in the amount of \$2.00 per day and a one time uniform charge of \$10.00 by placing notices in the booking area of the jail, throughout the jail, and in the inmate handbook which is issued to each inmate upon admission to the jail. (R: 168.) Additionally, all inmates are on constructive notice of their responsibility for payment of subsistence costs in the Laws of the State of Florida and Florida Statutes. Inmates also are advised of the grievance procedure whereby they may object to the assessment of costs

against them in the inmate handbook. (R: 168.)

Prior to the assessment of costs, Respondent determines the financial status of a prisoner and has implemented safeguards to ensure that any income exempt by state or federal law is excluded from assessment. (R: 168.) If an inmate has funds in an inmate account that is not exempt by state or federal law, is not owed to a victim pursuant to a restitution order, and is not owed to any outstanding child support or other order of court, then Respondent determines that the inmate has an ability to pay the subsistence cost. (R: 168.) Inmates are free to transfer any or all of the balance in their inmate escrow accounts to anyone they choose. (R: 168.)

If the inmate's account has any funds to pay the subsistence costs, then the costs will be assessed and charged at that time.

(R: 167.) If the inmate's account has a zero balance, no subsistence fees are assessed against the inmate's account. (R: 167.)

Inmates can object to the assessment of costs and can present reasons in opposition to the assessment through the grievance procedure which is described in the inmate handbook.

(R: 167.) All grievances filed by inmates opposing the assessment of costs are reviewed by the Inmate Asset

Administrator. (R: 167.) If the Asset Administrator finds that the inmate has other financial obligations which supersede payment of subsistence costs, such as child support, then the

objection may be sustained. (R: 167, 171.) If the objection to the assessment of costs is overruled, the inmate may appeal to the Director of Detention. (R: 167.)

Ability to pay (indigency) is defined by Respondent for purposes of §951.033 as an inmate with a zero balance in his or her account. (R: 170.) If an inmate is acquitted of all charges, or if a conviction is reversed on appeal or otherwise discharged, then Respondent refunds all subsistence costs charged pursuant to Fla. Stat. §939.06 if the inmate presents a copy of the judgment within thirty (30) days. (R: 171.)

## JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The decision of the Court of Appeal did not <u>expressly</u> declare Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999) to be valid<sup>1</sup>, did not <u>expressly</u> construe a provision of the state or federal Constitution<sup>2</sup>, and did not <u>expressly</u> affect a class of constitutional or state officers<sup>3</sup>

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In its opinion the Court of Appeal decided that Respondent's SOP for implementation of Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999), did not violate procedural due process as guaranteed by

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1980); FRAP Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1980); FRAP Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1980); FRAP Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iii)

the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, and further determined that Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999), was not overly vague and did not unlawfully delegate legislative power to an executive.

The opinion of the Court of Appeal was limited, and did not expressly declare a statute to be valid, did not expressly construe a provision of either the state or federal Constitution, and did not expressly affect a class of constitutional or state officers.

Assuming that a basis for accepting jurisdiction has been shown under any of the three cited provisions of the appellate rules upon which Petitioners rely, acceptance of jurisdiction, as the appellate rules suggest, remains discretionary. Exercise by this Court of its discretion to deny review is appropriate since the determination by the Court of Appeal of the issues presented to it was proper.

## **ARGUMENT**

#### I.

THE OPINION OF THE COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY DECLARE VALID THE STATE STATUTE AND JURISDICTION UNDER RULE 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i) IS NOT CONFERRED.

The opinion of the Court of Appeal does not <u>expressly</u> declare valid the state statute. By its decision, the Court of Appeal concluded, not that the statute was valid, but that it was not invalid, at least on the arguments presented to it by Petitioners. However, Article V, Section 3(d)(3), Florida

Constitution, permits the exercise by this Court of its discretionary jurisdiction only where the validity of the state statute is <u>expressly</u> declared. That the decision may imply validity, or that validity might be inherent in the decision, does not longer suffice to permit exercise by this Court of its discretionary jurisdiction to review that decision.

#### II.

THE OPINION OF THE COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE A PROVISION OF THE STATE OF FEDERAL CONSTITUTION, AND JURISDICTION UNDER RULE 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) IS NOT CONFERRED.

In Petitioners' Jurisdictional Brief, Petitioners never explained the state or constitutional provision which they contend was expressly construed, or how such provision was construed. Instead, Petitioners just presumed this basis for discretionary jurisdiction, focusing instead on its claim that the Court of Appeal erred in its application of principles of procedural due process as enunciated by the United States Supreme Court in Fuentes v. Shevin, 407 U.S. 67 (1972).

In its decision the Court of Appeal determined that
Respondent's SOP implementing the statutory scheme for collection
of subsistence costs from inmates, applying United States Supreme
Court precedent, satisfied procedural due process as contemplated
by the Fourteenth Amendment. Respondent concedes that the
Fourteenth Amendment was involved in the Court's decision, but
only to the extent that the Fourteenth Amendment was the

provision of law that was applicable. The Court of Appeal did not construe any constitutional provision; instead, it applied existing precedent and established principles of law to the facts of the case.

In order to properly invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court, relying upon Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), a Petitioner must show that the Court of Appeal did more than just examine the facts of a particular case, to which existing, recognized, and clear cut provisions of the Constitution are being applied. Armstrong v. Tampa, 106 So.2d 407 (Fla. 1958). In its decision the Court of Appeal made no effort to "explain, define, or otherwise eliminate existing doubts arising from the language or terms of the constitutional provision." The question in this instance which the Court of Appeal resolved did not require construction of any constitutional provision.

Discretionary jurisdiction under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) to review the decision of the Court of Appeal is not proper.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>At issue in <u>Armstrong</u> was Section 4, Article V, Florida Constitution (1956). That section of the Constitution involved the circumstances under which it was appropriate for a direct appeal to be taken from a trial court to the Florida Supreme Court. The operative language, however, is virtually the same, with the same effect in how the Supreme Court's jurisdiction is limited. See also <u>Carmazi v. Board of County Commissioners of Dade County</u>, 104 So.2d 727 (Fla. 1958); and <u>Page v. Florida</u>, 113 So.2d 557 (Fla. 1959).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup><u>Page</u> at 557.

#### III.

THE OPINION OF THE COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AFFECT A CLASS OF CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATE OFFICERS, AND JURISDICTION UNDER RULE 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iii) IS NOT CONFERRED.

Although in this instance Respondent is the Sheriff, that is only because he, as the Chief Correctional Officer for Broward County, so designated pursuant to Section 951.061, Florida Statutes (1999), operates jail facilities within Broward County. While conceding that Respondent, as the Broward County Sheriff, is a constitutional officer<sup>6</sup>, the decision of the Court of Appeal is limited to the fact pattern which was presented to it, and should not be more broadly interpreted as expressly affecting a class of constitutional or state officers.

Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999), applies to chief correctional officers permitting collection of subsistence costs from inmates housed in "county detention facilities" and "municipal detention facilities." In this case it was this Respondent's SOP implementing the statutory scheme for collection of subsistence costs that was being challenged. There was no evidence of record before the Court of Appeal that any other sheriff is a designated chief correctional officer, operating any

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup>Article VIII, Section 1(d), Florida Constitution; Weitzenfeld v. Dierks, 312 So.2d 194 (Fla. 1975).

 $<sup>^{7}</sup>$ Section 951.23(1)(a), Florida Statutes (1999).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup>Section 951.23(1)(d), Florida Statutes (1999).

other county detention facility, or that any other sheriff had instituted a program implementing Section 951.033, Florida Statutes (1999). Section 951.061, Florida Statutes (1999), while permitting appointment of a sheriff as a chief correctional officer, does not mandate that appointment, and it is obvious that a county commission may hire someone other than a sheriff as a chief correctional officer. A chief correctional officer other than a sheriff, designated by a county commission, or a chief correctional officer of a municipal detention facility are not constitutional or state officers on the court of Appeal decision here affects Respondent only. In

Additionally, implicit in the constitutional provision and applicable appellate rule defining the jurisdictional limits of this court is the requirement that the Court of Appeal decision for which review is being sought "expressly affects a class of constitutional officers." (emphasis supplied) That terminology plainly requires that the decision of the Court of Appeal explain how it impacts the class of officers who are being affected. In the absence of a clear expression of intention to affect the requisite class, that a decision may inherently affect that class will not suffice to permit exercise by this court of its

Section 951.061 (1), Florida Statutes (1999).

<sup>10</sup> Hakam v. City of Miami Beach, 108 So.2d 608 (Fla. 1959).

<sup>&</sup>quot;Florida State Board of Health v. Lewis, 149 So.2d 41 (Fla. 1963).

discretionary jurisdiction.

<u>Discretionary Jurisdiction, even if technically existing, should not be accepted.</u>

Petitioners' Jurisdictional Brief glosses over the jurisdictional issues, focusing instead on what Petitioners perceive as the erroneous conclusions of the Court of Appeal and the importance of reversing that Court's decision.

Discretionary jurisdiction, even if technically proper, should not be exercised. The suggestion by Petitioners that the decision of the Court of Appeal upholding the Respondent's SOP in this instance has far reaching implications is erroneous and not supported by the record. There is no evidentiary basis for concluding what other, if any, detention facilities have implemented the statute, or demonstrating commonality in procedure for implementation. Correspondingly, there is therefore no basis to conclude, as Petitioners suggest, that the decision of this Court of Appeal will somehow evoke conflicting decisions from other Courts of Appeal, and that this Court should issue a preemptive determination preventing such a conflict. Respondent does admit that the statutory authorization for the collection of inmate subsistence costs is a matter of statewide concern. However, rather than providing a basis for review, it is that fact that is the recited basis for the passage of the statute authorizing collection of subsistence costs from

inmates. 12

Petitioners have cited no legal basis for overturning the decision of the Court of Appeal, and there is therefore no valid reason for the Supreme Court to exercise its discretion to accept jurisdiction of this matter. The Court of Appeal properly applied concepts of procedural due process in determining that the Respondent's SOP for collection of inmate subsistence costs was proper, and in determining that the SOP properly balanced inmate rights against important governmental interests. The Respondent's SOP was a practical and legal method of implementing actions which the state legislature has authorized. The determination by the Court of Appeal recognized Petitioners contentions as a contrivance to create practical road blocks not rooted in law which would impair implementation of the legislative intent.

### CONCLUSION

This court does not have discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Court of Appeal on any of the three cited grounds. Whether discretionary jurisdiction exists, on any one of the three grounds, this court should nonetheless exercise that discretion by not accepting jurisdiction.

<sup>12&</sup>quot;The Legislature finds that there is an urgent need to alleviate the increasing financial burdens of local subdivisions of the state caused by the expenses of incarcerating prisoners..." Section 951.033(1), Florida Statutes (1999).